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Frequently Asked Questions about Personal Services Contract Negotiations and General Negotiation Tips

Frequently Asked Questions about Personal Services Contract Negotiations
1. Can the agency negotiate on all Personal Services Contracts (“PSCs”), or only on PSCs generated through a Request for Proposals (“RFP”)?
RESPONSE:
All Personal Services Contracts, including sole-source contracts, can theoretically be negotiated, prior to contract signature/award.  
2. What are the limitations on the negotiations process itself?
RESPONSE:
The agency must negotiate with the best evaluated (highest scoring) vendor first.  If negotiations are unsuccessful with that vendor, then the agency may discontinue negotiations with that vendor and move on to the next highest-scoring vendor.  However, the agency cannot go back and re-engage in discussions with a vendor with whom negotiations have been discontinued, so this decision should not be taken lightly.
3. Should the agency include the budgeted amount in an RFP?
RESPONSE:
 No.  Agencies should not include the budgeted amount in an RFP.  KRS 45A.020(2)(f) requires that agencies provide for increased economy in state procurement activities by fostering effective competition.  Disclosing the budgeted amount in an RFP upfront defeats the purpose of conducting a competitively negotiated  procurement and does not demonstrate good stewardship of taxpayer dollars.  
4. What may be discussed with a vendor during negotiations?

RESPONSE:
The agency may discuss anything in the RFP or the specific vendor’s response about which it has concerns, but it cannot provide a vendor with information about any other vendor’s proposals.  In other words, the agency may generally indicate that other vendors’ have submitted a bid response, but cannot discuss specifics (i.e. how many other vendors bid, the names of the other vendors, or the specific solution or price proposed by another vendor).

5. Do negotiations have to be face-face?

RESPONSE:
This depends on the complexity of the items being negotiated.  A negotiation may be conducted over the telephone if the agency wishes to do so.

6. What should the agency do if a vendor refuses to negotiate?

RESPONSE:
If a vendor refuses to negotiate, then the agency will have to determine whether it is in the best interests of the agency to continue with contract award to that particular vendor; or to discontinue negotiations with that vendor and move to the next.  

7. May an agency agree to a price increase during negotiations?

RESPONSE:
Generally, no.   Typically, the price which a vendor proposes has been considered as part of the evaluation process, and establishes a ceiling for negotiation and not a floor (so price negotiations focus on a reduction in price and not an increase). There are limited exceptions to this, but if this situation occurs; the agency may wish to consult with the Finance and Administration Cabinet’s Office of Procurement Services, prior to moving forward with increasing the price during negotiations.
8. For price negotiations, should an agency simply ask a vendor to reduce their price by a certain amount?

RESPONSE:
Ideally, the agency should first ask a vendor to propose a lower price and task the vendor with the primary responsibility for coming back to the agency with a proposal for price reduction.  However, if this approach is unsatisfactory, or if the agency is in a time-crunch, the agency may simply choose to ask the vendor to reduce their price by a certain amount or percentage.

9. Should the agency attempt to negotiate, even if the highest scoring vendor’s response to the solicitation already proposed a price which is within the agency’s budget?

RESPONSE:
Yes.  Simply asking the vendor to come down in price based on reduced agency budgets, etc. may result in cost savings.

10. Certain PSCs, such as legal contracts, have pre-defined rates.  Can the agency still negotiate price on such contracts?

RESPONSE:
Pre-defined rates are typically “not to exceed” rates, so the agency may choose to negotiate for and pay a lower rate. 

GENERAL NEGOTIATION TIPS
· Be willing to negotiate in the first place
· Set realistic goals for yourself 
· Don't get emotionally involved
· Don’t be rushed into making a decision

· Never be the first person to name a figure
· Don't act too interested (give the impression you’re willing to walk away)
